
  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 1 

 

 CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF LYON 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND PLANNING COMMISSION 

SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES 
May 12, 2005 

 
Approved as submitted June 6, 2005. 

 
DATE:   May 12, 2005 
TIME:  6:00 PM 
PLACE:  58000 Grand River 
 
1. Call to Order:  Supervisor Young called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
2. Roll Call:  Present: Lannie Young, Supervisor 

Patricia Carcone, Treasurer 
     Pamela Johnson, Clerk 
     Dan Cash, Trustee 
     Brent Hemker, Trustee 
     John Hicks, Trustee  
     Troy Schilling, Trustee  
    
   Chairman Barber called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
   Present: Michael Barber 
     Jim Dome 
     Jim Hamilton 
     Laura James 
     Ted Soper 
     Laura WIlliams 

 
                   Also Present:  Matthew Quinn, Township Attorney 
      Chris Doozan, Township Planner 
      Loren Crandell, Township Engineer 

Chris Olson, Township Superintendent 
Les Cash, Fire Chief 

     
    Guests:  7 
 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
4. Approval of Agenda 
 
 Ms. Carcone stated that she would like the following issue removed from the agenda: 
  - Design Engineering and Easement Expenses for the Southwest Water 
    and Sewer Special Assessment Projects 
 
 Mr. Schilling stated that he would like to have the following issue added to the next regular  
 meeting agenda: 
  - Status of the Township’s finances. 
 
 Ms. Carcone made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  Mr. Hicks supported the 
 motion. 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 2 

 

 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: Carcone, Hemker, Hicks, Johnson, Schilling, Young 
     Nays:  Cash 
 
  Motion approved. 

  
5.  Call to the Public NONE 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS: 
 
 a.  Lyon Crossing PD – Amendment to PD request – Input from Planning Commission 
 
 Mr. Young stated that this item was put on the agenda this evening not as a proposal to amend 
 the PD.  It was put on the agenda as more of a workshop item.  He stated that it was decided 
 that they would like to include the Planning Commission because communication between 
 the two Boards is imperative. 
 
 Tony Antone, Kojaian Company, gave a brief presentation of the Lyon Crossing Development and 
 what they are proposing.  He talked about their involvement in the community.  He noted that he 
 sits on the Lyon Township DDA, comes to a lot of the meetings and feels that he has an obligation 

to the Township. 
 
Mr. Barber stated that he feels the downtown area should be with small quarters, bike paths.  He  
stated that he has no vision for dealerships in the downtown area.  He felt that if they agreed to do 
this then they will be stuck with the car dealerships forever.  Mr. Antone stated that when you start 
factoring in all of the challenges and obstacles, he felt that realistically, this area could stay like it 
is for many years, even with intensive marketing.   
 
Mr. Antone stated that they have really exhausted their efforts in trying to bring in retail.  He stated 
that he showed a couple Board members their internal list of hundreds of retailers.  He stated that 
they have been unable to bring in anybody to fill in. 
 
There was discussion with regard to the financial status.  Mr. Antone noted that they are in the 

“red” 
with this property and are losing money. 
 
Mr. Hamilton questioned what happened to the hotel that was originally proposed.  Mr. Antone 
responded that the hotel industry pretty much died after 9/11.   
 
Mr. Schilling questioned when the east property was purchased.  Mr. Antone responded that they 
purchased the east property approximately eight months after they purchased the west property. 
Mr. Schilling questioned why they did not market the west side first.  Mr. Antone responded that it 
is the users that decide where they want to be.  He stated that Wal-Mart wanted expressway 
visibility. 
 
Ms. James stated that she does not have a problem with auto dealerships.  She stated that if they 
do build them here, she would like to see the lights turned down and landscape planted as a  
buffer. 
 
Mr. Soper stated that he could see one but not three.  He stated that he does not want to see a 
motor mall.  He stated that he would like to keep everything internal with no curb cuts to Grand 
River. 
 
Mr. Dome stated that he cannot support any dealerships here.  He felt that it is just a matter of  



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 3 

 

time before retailers come.  He stated that he finds it hard to believe that a company like Kojaian 
didn’t factor in the area costs for a longer period of time. 
 
Ms. James felt that if the market does change, it still could be sold to retail. 
 
Mr. Soper stated that he would like to have retail with only one dealership.  Mr. Antone stated that 
he respects this, but that they are dead in the water with this site.  He stated that they got three 
dealerships at 10 acres each, they would probably break even. 
 
Todd Wyett, DDA Chairman, briefly discussed the vision of the DDA for this area. 
 
Mr. Hicks stated that he has come to conclusion that whatever store goes in, it is still not going 
to be a walking community in this area.  He stated that he is not opposed to one car dealership. 
He felt that there should be restricted uses along Grand River that would prohibit car related uses. 
 
Mr. Antone, using a displayed site plan, indicated where the two interested dealerships would be  
placed.  He stated that they are high end, quality dealerships and would use ten acres each.  He 
stated that there is a third 10 acre site that could be something else. 
 
Ms. Williams stated that she would like to see something submitted that is good for the Township. 
She felt that there is more opportunity for retail. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that the Master Plan has been changed because the Township is changing. 
She stated that if this proposal was brought forth a couple years ago, she would have been  
lobbying against it.  She feels that the economy has definitely changed.  She stated that she does 
want to see this property developed.  She doesn’t feel that this property, being off the expressway, 
is a walkable community.  She stated that there are some retailers that won’t come here.  She 
stated that she did visit both the Feldman dealerships and was very impressed.  She briefly 
discussed the taxes that will be paid.  She stated that she would be for the dealerships in this area. 
 
Mr. Cash stated that a walkable downtown is not going to happen on the north side of Grand  
River, it is going to be on the south side.  He stated that if they have the opportunity for a mix of 
commercial and residential, then there will be people walking downtown.  He stated that this  
parcel is too close to the expressway and felt that they would not lose with the dealerships. 
 
Mr. Hemker stated that he fears that they will run into a situation of setting a precedent.  He stated 
that he does not want retail pushed further to the interior of the Township. 
 
Mr. Schilling stated that he does understand plans change, but a car dealership was never  
envisioned for this area.  He felt that they should develop a plan and work together toward it. 
 
Ms. James noted that there will be jobs brought in to the Township with the dealerships. 
 
Ms. Carcone stated that the REU charges have been prepaid on this site. 
 
Jay Feldman, Liberty Chevrolet, questioned the status of the ring road.  Mr. Young asked if he could 
come into the office to discuss this. 
 
Ed Campbell, 27418 Pond Drive, stated that a downtown development does not need visibility 

from 
an expressway.  He stated that Wal-Mart needed the expressway visibility because they wanted  
the traffic.  He stated that the Township has been penny wise and pound foolish.  He felt that the 
economy will get better and felt that the Township should look at this very carefully.  
 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 4 

 

Mr. Young thanked Mr. Antone and the Planning Commission for coming and providing feedback 
regarding this issue.  He stated that from what he has heard today, he would encourage  
Mr. Antone to go through the process.  He stated that he would not like to see anything on the 
south side of the ring road.  He felt that the north side would be better for car dealerships because  
it does backup to the landfill.  He stated that he would not like to see anymore curb cuts onto 
Grand River than what has already been approved.  He stated that he would like to see this 
move forward and felt that a lot of stuff will get worked out in the process. 

 
 Mr. Barber closed the Planning Commission meeting at 7:10 PM.  The Board took a short break and 
  then continued on with the agenda.   
 
 b.  Building Official Nomination and Appointment 
 
 Mr. Olson stated that a criminal background check has been completed for Jim Zielke.  He stated 
 that it has come back clean.  He stated that Mr. Zielke is also being considered in Sterling Heights 
 for a Zoning Code Official position.  He noted that Sterling Heights has not offered Mr. Zielke this 
 position yet. 
 
 Mr. Olson stated that Jim Zielke is the candidate that he is nominating for the position of Building 
 Official/Zoning Administrator.  He stated that this would be subject to a pre-employment physical 
 and the successful negotiation of an appropriate salary. 
 
 Mr. Hicks made a motion to appoint Jim Zielke to the position of Building Official/Zoning  

Administrator subject to the passing of a pre-employment physical and the successful negotiation 
of an appropriate salary.  Mr. Hemker supported the motion. 
 
Mr. Young asked if there were any comments from the Board.  Mr. Hicks stated that having met 
Mr. Zielke, he feels that he would be a real asset to the community. 
 
Mr. Schilling questioned if there is a probationary period.  Ms. Johnson responded that all 
employees are subject to a six month probationary period.  It is indicated in the Personnel Manual. 

 Mr. Quinn noted that he contacted a Labor Attorney with regard to reviewing the Personnel  
 Manual.  He stated that the Labor Attorney sent him a proposal with time table and hourly rate for 
 the review.  He stated that once they give the Labor Attorney the go ahead to review the manual, 
 it will take approximately 30 days for the review to be completed. 
 
 Ms. Carcone questioned what kind of background check was done.  Mr. Olson responded that he 
 provided Sgt. Crockett with the applicant’s name, address and drivers license number.  She stated 
 that she does not want to officially hire him as Building Official.  Ms. Johnson stated that he would 

be an “at will” employee, as the BOCA code no longer exists. Ms. Carcone questioned when they 
are going to discuss salary.   

 
 Mr. Young stated that if the Board chooses this individual, they need to remember that the Building 
 Department is self-funded.  He stated that it will not affect the General Fund. 
 
 There was discussion with regard to salary.  Mr. Schilling stated that he would not like to see the 
 salary exceed what was advertised.  Mr. Olson noted that Mr. Zielke’s salary was $61,000 plus 
 benefits at Lincoln.  Mr. Cash noted that $60,000 was the salary that was advertised.  He felt that 
 they should not exceed this amount. 
 
 Mr. Hicks amend his motion to include that the salary amount is not to exceed $60,000.  Mr. Hemker 
 supported the amendment. 
 
 Mr. Young stated that as he understands this, if the motion passes, they are asking Chris Olson to 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 5 

 

 offer the position to Mr. Zielke.  There was discussion with regard to salary negotiations. 
 
  Roll Call Vote:  Ayes: Johnson, Hicks, Young, Cash 
     Nays: Schilling, Hemker, Carcone 
 
  Motion approved. 
 
 c.  Design Engineering and Easement Expenses for the Southwest Water and Sewer Special 
      Assessment Projects (with Board Approval of Addition) 
 
 This issue was removed from the agenda. 
 
 d.  First Reading of Amendment to the Tree Protection Ordinance (With Board Approval of 
      Addition) 
 
 Mr. Quinn explained that this is set up as a two year guarantee for tree replacement.  He stated 
 that there is a higher cost associated with a two year guarantee.  He briefly reviewed the  
 amendments to the ordinance.  He stated that this is on the agenda as an introduction and 
 possible first reading.  He stated that if the Board chooses to adopt the first reading tonight, this  
 will be back on the June agenda for a second reading. 
 
 Mr. Hemker made a motion to adopt an Ordinance to Amend Chapter 18, Environment, Article 

VI., Tree Protection, Division No. 5., Enforcement To Give Additional Guidance Regarding  
Relocation Or Replacement Of Protected Trees And To Modify The Penalties For Violation Of  
Article VI., Tree Protection.  Mr. Schilling supported the motion. 
 
There was brief discussion with regard to the replacement of trees.  The Board felt that a two year 
guarantee was reasonable. 
 
 Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
    Nays: None 
 
 Motion approved. 

 
 e.  Executive Session regarding Superintendent Review 
 
 Mr. Cash made a motion to close the regular meeting an go into an Executive Session for an 

employee review, which was requested by the employee.   Ms. Johnson supported the 
motion. 
 
  Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 
     Nays: None 
 
  Motion approved.  The special meeting was closed at 7:45 PM. 
 
7.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

Supervisor Young adjourned the Executive Session. The meeting was adjourned at 9:35 PM. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 

Deby Cothery 



  

 
       Charter Township of Lyon Board of Trustees                       May 12,2005      Page 6 

 

 
Deby Cothery                                            Pamela Johnson    
Recording Secretary                                                      Clerk    


